
July 13, 2013 

 

Krista Johns 

Vice President for Policy and Research 

Accreditation Commission for Community and Junior Colleges 

 

Dear Ms. Johns, 

 

I have received your letter dated July 9, 2013 in which you request that I specifically itemize from 

the RP Group report the content and page number that I feel “articulates” Commission violations. 

You also requested that I itemize from ACCJC Gone Wild the Commission violations. As you 

mentioned in your letter I have updated the paper over time as new information became available. 

Recognizing this, and recognizing the need for you to consider all of your violations, I will use the 

most recent version of ACCJC Gone Wild for the purpose of recognizing the violations. The index 

of this version contains the page numbers of the sections of federal regulations that the 

Commission has violated as well as other areas that need your consideration. 

 

I am still not clear how you lost my original complaint of April 30, 2013 as it clearly stated “This 

is a complaint against the Commission as well as a third party comment related to the June 2013 

reviews of the above colleges.The complaint and comment outline recent Commissions 

violations of standards and policies including, but not limited to, failure of ACCJC to follow 

its own timelines, conflict of interests, misapplication of standards, lack of concise standards, 

respect for due process rights, lack of consistent basis for sanction levels, arbitrary and 

inconsistent use of standards, failure to provide the public with transparency in its 

operations, failure to properly train visiting teams, interference in the collective bargaining 

processes, attempting to replace local governing board policies and procedures with those 

that the Commission prefers, and others as outlined in attached the documents: ACCJC Gone 

Wild by Martin Hittelman and Focusing Accreditation on Quality Improvement by the RP 

Group. “ 

.  

 

“Submitted as an attachment to: accjc@accjc.org   

 

 

April 30, 2013” 

 

mailto:accjc@accjc.org


Here are the pages from the recent version of ACCJC Gone Wild where the paper spells out the 

complaint and the violation. 

 

Page 5 – Goal of accreditation is that the college meets acceptable levels of educational quality. 

The ACCJC does not consider the quality of instruction. Thus the ACCJC is in violation of both 

federal and ACCJC policy. 

 

Page 5 – the ACCJC does not have clearly defined objectives which results in the Commission and 

the Visiting Teams often differing in the sanctions proposed. This is a violation of Article 1, 

Section 2 of ACCJC Bylaws. 

 

Page 6 – the ACCJC does not use “widely accepted standards and policies” including SLOs, 

prefinancing of retirement benefits, governance, etc. This violates CFR 602.13. This claim is 

supported in the RP Group report. 

 

Page 6 – laws of California not respected.  

 

Page 7 – interference with college mission statements and attempt to get college’s to downsize 

their missions. This is in violation of 34 CFR 602.17(a)(1) 

 

Page 7 – the ACCJC is out of step with other accrediting agencies. This violates CFR 602.13. This 

is supported in the RP Group report. 

 

Page 7 – value to students is not recognized. This violates ACCJC policy statements. 

 

Page 8 – micromanaging the colleges through attempts in sanction letters to control actions of 

Boards of Trustees and internal procedures. This violates both Federal and ACCJC policy to not 

interfere in the colleges operations and judge the colleges on their missions and policies. 

 

Page 10 – violation of 34 CFR 602 for not having adequate staff, resources, and time to consider 

fairly the colleges under investigation. For example, trying to judge 21 colleges in two days of 

work and reading when it is impossible to read the required 10,000 or so pages of material. 

 

Page 10 – attempt to change the missions of colleges 

 

Page 13 – no sanction against Mt. San Antonio College even though it did not fully satisfy all 

policy and standards but then placing sanctions on others for the same lacks. This violates CFR 

602.20(a). 

 

Page 14 – no clear understanding of levels of sanctions as illustrated by Commission sanctions 

differing from Visiting Team recommendations. This is supported by the RG Group report. 

 

Page 16 and entire paper – lack of emphasis on what is important – the education that student’s 

receive and attempting to close colleges for meeting input standards and not considering any output 

standards such as the California Community College scorecards. 

 



Page 22 – attacks on local governing boards and the way they operate is a variance with California 

law regarding locally elected boards. 

 

Page 23 – in violation of 34 CFR 602.17 by not carefully considering the college self studies and 

Visiting Team reports. 

 

Page 24 – Inadequate training of Visiting Teams in violation of CFR 602.15(a)(2). This is 

supported by the RP Group report. 

 

Page 25 – lack of public record on workings in violation of federal standards. 

 

Page 25 – lack of public access to work of the Commission. This is a violation of California law 

from an agency that receives the bulk its funding from public colleges. 

 

Page 26 – Conflict of interest by Steven Kinsella when it promotes the CCLC program of 

investment of retirement benefits funds while serving on the Commission and attempting to force 

colleges to preinvest contrary to GASB 45 and California Community College requirements. 

 

Page 27 – same as the above applies to Frank Gornick conflict of interest. 

 

Sanctions on Colleges section (pages 29-66) – regarding SLOs, GASB 45, inconsistent application 

of standards, interference in Board of Trustee matters, attempts to change missions of colleges by 

the Commission, interference in collective bargaining, application on reserves in conflict with 

California Board of Governors regulations and policy, reliance on inputs rather than outputs in 

evaluations of colleges, attempt to micromanage colleges, unclear standards so visiting teams come 

out with variant conclusions from college to college, insufficient reasons to raise to the standard of 

sanction at many colleges – in short, the background for the claims made earlier as to Commission 

violations. Specific violations can be found in this section via the index at the end of the report.  

 

Interference in Collective Bargaining (pages 66-74) in violation of California law. 

 

Failure to adequately address complaint letters and issues raised in Hittelman letters (pages 67-71) 

 

Failure to adequately address complaint letter by CTA (page 74) 

 

Failure to adequately address complaint of Chancellor’s Task Force (pages 75-77) 

 

Backup on information regarding violations of Commission from RP Group (pages 77-79) 

 

Interference in elected Board of Trustee procedures and policies (pages 80-82) 

 

Failure to obey timelines for agenda posting (pages 82-83) 

 

Failure to respond to my complaint in a timely way to April 30, 2013 complaint (pages 83-88) 

 



RP Group:  General backup of material on hostile climate, emphasis on compliance, lack of 

training of visiting teams, Describes how other accreditation agencies work to help colleges 

improve rather than just concentrating on compliance. 

 

Page 17 - North Central Association (NCA-HLC) - – criteria differs from that of ACCJC in that 

“…so that accreditation decisions focus on the particulars of each institution, rather than on trying 

to make it fit a pre-established mold. The widely different purposes and scopes of colleges and 

universities demand criteria that are broad enough to encompass diversity and support innovation, 

but clear enough to ensure acceptable quality. (NCA-HLC, 2010)” This illustrates how ACCJC 

does not follow widely accepted policy. The ACCJC does not focus on the purposes and scopes of 

the individual colleges it reviews.  

 

Page 19 - shows lack of ACCJC procedures to give adequate review as opposed to having reader 

panels. 

 

Page 70 - The commission should encourage colleges to improve. “I don’t know how much 

compliance really improves us all especially if its strict compliance with the attitude the 

commission has exhibited in the recent past in that you will do it our way. An example of how the 

ACCJC fails to meet its purpose.” 

 

Page 71 - ACCJC has not succeeded in creating a culture in the region that focuses on quality  

 

Page 71- . Respondents also expressed concerns about how the focus on compliance in the 

accreditation process may be detracting from institutions’ ability to address their own priorities. 

The ALO from College B said that accreditation has become so constant with lengthier annual 

reports, substantive change reports, midterm reports, follow-up reports and the self-study. As a 

result, colleges are:  

 

“…not devoting time to things that could improve the institution in ways you want to improve 

them. You have to lay things aside because you have to answer their concerns and not the ones you 

may believe are more important to do.” 

This illustrates how the Commission’s actions defeat its basic purposes. 

 

Page 72 – the emphasis on compliance resulting in lack of quality. This illustrates how the 

Commission’s activity undermines its basic purposes. 

 

Page 73 – inconsistency between ACCJC and its words. 

 

Page 75 – lack of good relationship between ACCJC and college staff. 

 

Page 76 – ACCJC not receptive to college concerns. 

 

Page 77 – ACCJC not meeting federal standards of transparency 

 

Page 78 – directives from ACCJC not clear on how to satisfy ACCJC demands. “However, 

College C interviewees expressed dissatisfaction with the relationship between the commission’s 



standards and the recommendations made by the evaluation team. They felt that the 

recommendations they received in their last visit were perplexing and sometimes had little to do 

with the standards. As a result, it was challenging for the college to distinguish between how to 

meet the standards and how to enact a quality improvement practice.” 

 

Page 79 – disconnect between Commission and Visiting Teams. “that point to a disconnect 

between the commission’s expectations and what it communicates to institutions and evaluation 

teams. First relates to a lack of clarity on what the commission considers a satisfactory meeting of 

the standards. The commission’s external report identified a need for an increased understanding 

among both colleges and evaluation teams about what meets standards. Interviewees suggested that 

both colleges and evaluation teams want more guidance from the commission on what constitutes 

good practice.” 

 

Page 80 – disconnect between Commission and Visiting Teams. “, interviewees expressed two 

concerns related to a perception that the commission did not value the work or judgment of the 

evaluation teams. First, interviewees commented that the commission makes changes to team 

reports and second, that the commission will take more severe action than what was recommended 

by the evaluation team. The CEOs from Colleges A, B and D all had served as evaluation team 

chairs and all reported having experienced one or both of these results.” 

 

“College B’s CEO, who has chaired several evaluation teams, shared that the commission’s action 

on accreditation status was in every case more severe than what his last three teams recommended, 

“We didn’t recommend warning for any of the three colleges, but all three ended up being on 

warning. That’s just disturbing that the commission goes “We didn’t recommend warning for any 

of the three colleges, but all three ended up being on warning. That’s just disturbing that the 

commission goes beyond what the team recommends and even adding recommendations that the 

team didn’t make.” 

 

Page 81 - lack of transparency - “Another possible rationale behind the misalignment between the 

commission and the evaluation team is that ACCJC's decisions are based on more than the self-

study and evaluation team report. The CEO from College D commented that he had been told by 

ACCJC staff that "there are many other things the commission takes into account when making a 

determination [of accreditation status]" but that these other factors are not made clear to or 

shared with the colleges or the teams.” 

 

Page 81 - Poor investigation methods “much of the commission's and visiting team's actions are 

based on perceptions and relationships as opposed to facts and reality.” 

 

Page 82 - poor training and selection of visiting team members. 

 

Page 83 - lack of consistency in Visiting Team Reports. 

 

Page 84-90 - problems with the training of Visiting Teams 

 

Page 92 - best training is received from other colleges 

 



Page 93 - Amount of work required not consistent with the value of the accreditation 

 

Page 94 - a reinvention of accreditation needed 

 

Page 95 - failure to meet standards of other agencies. “the commission does not employ a process 

comparable to those of NCA and SACS, which actively engages colleges with quality 

improvement efforts. As a result, college interviewees remarked that by default the emphasis falls 

on compliance which, while critical, can detract from institutional improvement priorities-implying 

a disconnect between the intentions of the commission and the experience of the colleges.”   

 

Pages 102-104    Lack of consistency. 

 

I hope by actually reading the documents I have sent you that you are able to clearly and 

completely answer my complaint in a more timely manner than in the past. 

 

Martin Hittelman 

2475 Moreno Drive 

Los Angeles, CA 90039 

 

(323) 644-2859 

 

 


